SENATE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
January 25, 2012
9:02 a.m

9:02:12 AM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Stedman called the Senate Finance Commttee
nmeeting to order at 9:02 a. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Lyman Hof f man, Co- Chair
Senator Bert Stedman, Co-Chair
Senator Lesil McQuire, Vice-Chair
Senator Johnny Ellis

Senat or Denni s Egan

Senat or Donny O son

Senat or Joe Thomas

VEMBERS ABSENT

None

ALSO PRESENT

Lisa Wissler, Staff, Senator Hollis French; Laura Brod,
Former State Representative, M nnesota; Representative Al an
Aust erman; Margo Waring, Juneau; Ruth Danner, Juneau; Barry
Fadem President, National Popular Vote; Susan K. Bell,
Comm ssi oner, Depart ment of Commer ce, Community  and
Econom ¢  Devel opnent; Cat hy Jeans, Fi nance Operations
Manager, Departrment of Commerce, Comrunity and Econom c
Devel opnent; Rodger Painter, President, Alaskan Shellfish
Growers Association; Russell Dick, President and CEO Haa
Aani, LLC Paul Fuhs, Al aska Sea Farns.

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Dr. Carolyn Brown, Juneau; Randy S. Giffin, Fairbanks;
Judy Andree, League of Wnen Voters, Juneau.

SUMVARY

SB 39 U. S. PRESI DENTI AL ELECTI ON COVPACT



SB 39 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

CSHB 121(RLS)
LOAN FUNDS: CHARTERS/ MARI CULTURE/ M CROLOAN

CSHB 121(RLS) was HEARD and HELD in commttee for
further consideration.

#sb39
SENATE BILL NO. 39

"An Act ratifying an interstate conpact to elect the
President and Vice-President of the United States by
nati onal popular vote; and neking related changes to
statutes applicable to the selection by voters of
electors for candidates for President and Vice-
President of the United States and to the duties of
t hose electors.”

9:03: 27 AM

LI SA VEI SSLER, STAFF, SENATOR HOLLI S FRENCH, expl ained SB
39. She referred to the Sponsor Statenment (copy on file).
She stated that the bedrock rule in elections was that the
person with the nobst votes wins, but that was not always
the case under the current election system She stated that
the United States Constitution directed each state to
appoint a nunmber of electors equal to the state's nunber of
senators and representatives. In Alaska, that was three
el ectors. She stated that the constitution allowed the
states to determ ne how the el ectors woul d be appoi nt ed.

Co-Chair Hoffrman remarked that there was a belief that the
bill would elimnate the Electoral College. He wondered if
that was true. Ms. Weissler replied that SB 39 would not
elimnate the El ectoral Coll ege.

Co- Chair Hof f man wondered how many people in Al aska support
SB 39. Ms. Weissler agreed to provide that information.

Senator O son queried the simlarity between a bill that
was introduced a few years prior and SB 39. M. Wissler
replied that they were very simlar

9:09:46 AM

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 2 01/ 25/ 12 9:02 A M



LAURA  BROD, FORMER STATE  REPRESENTATI VE, M NNESOTA,
testified in support of SB 39. She conmunicated that she
was i nvol ved in simlar | egi slation as a state
representative in Mnnesota. She stated that SB 39 would
guarantee the presidency of the United States to the
candi date who received the nost votes in the entire United

States. The bill ensured that every vote, in every state,
would matter in every presidential election. She explained
that the bill had been enacted by nine jurisdictions that
possessed 132 electoral votes - 49 percent of the 270
necessary to activate it (VI, MD, WA IL, NJ, DC, MA CA
and HI). She furthered that the bill had passed 31

| egi slative chanbers in 21 jurisdictions (AR CA CO DT,
DC, DE, H, IL, Mg M, MA, M, NV, NJ, DM NY, NC, OR R,
VT, and WA). In a recent 47 to 13 vote, in the republican-
controll ed New York Senate, republicans supported the bill
21 to 11, and denocrats supported in 26 to 2. The bill had
been endorsed by 2,124 state |egislators.

Ms. Brod stated that the shortcomngs of the currents
system stemmed from the state w nner-take-all statutes,
which award all of a state's electoral votes to the
candidate who received the nobst popular votes in each
state. The sinner-take-all rule had permtted candidates to
win the presidency w thout w nning the nost popular votes
nationwide in 4 of our 56 elections. A shift of 60,000
votes in Chio in 2004 would have elected Kerry despite
Bush's nationwde lead of 3 mllion. She explained that
anot her shortcoming of the wnner-take-all rule was that
presidential candidates had no reason to pay attention to
the concerns of voters in states where they are confortably
ahead or hopelessly behind. In 2004 and 2008, candi dates
concentrated two-thirds of their visits and ad noney in the
post-convention canpaign in just six closely divided
battl eground states, wth 98 percent going to just 15
states. She stressed that two thirds of the states were
i gnor ed.

Ms. Brod declared that Article Il, Section 1 of the United
States Constitution gave the states exclusive control over
the manner of awarding their electoral votes: "Each state
shall appoint, in such manner as the legislature thereof
may direct, a number of electors.” The w nner-take-all rule
was not in the constitution. It was used by only three
states in the nation's first election in 1789. She stressed
that Miine and Nebraska's awarding of electoral votes by

district was a rem nder that states control the process.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 3 01/ 25/ 12 9:02 A M



Ms. Brod noted that under SB 39, all the electoral votes
from the enacting states wuld be awarded to the
presidential candidate who received the nobst popular votes
inall fifty states and DC. The bill would take effect only
when enacted by states possessing a mjority of the
el ectoral votes. She explained that SB 39 would preserve
the El ectoral College and state control of elections.

9:14: 34 AM

Ms. Brod noted that there was not nuch canpai gn noney spent
in the state, but Al askans contributed noney to canpaigns
that was never spent in the state by the candidates. She
continued to express that a national popular vote would
require the candidates to wait for the polls to return,
before a president is determ ned.

Co-Chair Hoffman queried the views of the citizens of
Al askans pertaining to SB 39. Ms. Brod stated that about 70
percent believed that a National Popular Vote was in the
best interest of them and Al aska.

Co- Chair Hof fman wondered why Al askans supported the bill.
Ms. Brod replied that individuals did not want to vote,
because they felt that their votes did not matter. She al so
stated that sone Al askans felt that the candi dates were not
focusing on the issues that Al askans cared about.

Co-Chair Hoffman noted that the 2004 election would have
all oned John Kerry to win the popular vote. He wondered if
the bill would favor one party nore than the other. M.
Brod replied that SB 39 would not favor one party nore than
t he ot her.

9: 24: 09 AM

Senator McGuire wondered how the conpact would be enforced
and executed. She also queried the possibility of a
constitutional challenge. M. Brod replied that she did
expect litigation regarding this |egislation. She explained
a case from 1893, which determned that the awarding of
el ectors was specifically a state's right. She noted that
interstate conpacts were tools used by legislators, but SB
39 was a non-typical way to develop a conpact. She stated
that the conpact would allow the states to retain the

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 4 01/ 25/ 12 9:02 A M



authority for elections. The states would certify the total
votes, as designed and determ ned by Al aska.

Senator Thomas wondered how the electoral votes in Al aska
would be determned. M. Brod replied that the conpact
would allow for Alaska to take all of the votes in Al aska,
and determne which candidate won Alaska for each
candi date. She furthered that the totals for each candi date
woul d be based on the total national vote from each state,
and the electors would base their vote on the national
popul ar vot e.

9:32: 35 AM

Senat or A son wondered how voter fraud would be dealt with,
and inconplete nunbers of votes. He added the conputers
were a domnant part of elections in rural Al aska, and
m ght not work as well in those areas. M. Brod replied
t hat the rural voters would be heard under this
| egi sl ature. She stressed that each state could determ ne
voter fraud laws. She felt that voter fraud woul d decrease
under SB 39.

Senat or Egan noted sone occurrences when the nenbers of the
El ectoral College did not vote for the candidate that was
expected. Ms. Brod replied that there were eleven cases in
hi story when and elector did not vote they direction that
was expected. She stressed that it was the state's right to
determne how to deal with "faithless" electors.

Senator Egan queried how nuch of the United States
popul ation lived in the top 50 largest cities in the US
Ms. Brod agreed to provide that information.

9:40: 28 AM

Co-Chair Hoffman noted the positive reasons for SB 39:
canpaign dollars spent in the state, the presidential wn
woul d not be declared until the polls in the western United
States were closed, and Al askan issues would be addressed
during the presidential canpaign. He queried sone potential
drawbacks to changing the current system M. Brod replied
that she could not think of any drawbacks to changing the
system She stressed that a national popular vote was in
the best interest of the country.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 5 01/ 25/ 12 9:02 A M



JUDY  ANDREE, LEAGUE OF WOMEN VOTERS, JUNEAU (via
t el econf erence), testified in support of SB 39. She felt
that the legislation was a bi-partisan effort. She stressed
the inportance of the Electoral College, but pointed out
that the Electoral College had evolved to support a
parti san system She felt that individuals nmust be counted
at the national |evel.

9:46: 53 AM

DR. CARCLYN BROWN, JUNEAU (via teleconference), spoke in
strong support of SB 39. She shared that the states had the
right wunder the US Constitution, to determine how the
el ectors would consider the vote.

RANDY S. GRIFFIN, FAIRBANKS (via tel econference), testified
against SB 39. He felt that Al aska had nore representation
t han Al askans deserved. He felt that Al aska was given nore
power per person. He stressed that Al askans woul d | ose that

power. He liked the electoral system because it would
accentuate the state's boundaries. He felt that the states
woul d be considered "little nations."

9:52: 25 AM

MARGO WARI NG, JUNEAU, testified in support of SB 39. She
expressed that the history of voting in the country was not
positive.

RUTH DANNER, JUNEAU, spoke in support of SB 39. She stated
t hat Al askans raise $1.6 mllion for presi denti al
el ections, and the noney was spent elsewhere in the
country.

BARRY FADEM PRESI DENT, NATI ONAL POPULAR VOTE, testified in
support of SB 39. He pointed out that Alaska had no clout
under the current system

Co-Chair Stedman noted the one zero fiscal not form the
Di vi si on of El ections.

SB 39 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

#hb121
CS FOR HOUSE BILL NO. 121(RLS)

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 6 01/ 25/ 12 9:02 A M



"An Act establishing the comrercial charter fisheries
revolving loan fund, the Mariculture revolving |oan
fund, and the Al aska mcroloan revolving |oan fund and
relating to those funds and |oans from those funds;
and providing for an effective date.”

10: 02: 26 AM

SUSAN K BELL, COW SSI ONER, DEPARTMENT OF COMVERCE
COVWUNI TY AND ECONOM C DEVELOPMENT, referred the CSHB 121
Revol ving Loan Funds Summary (copy on file). She stated
that there were three proposed revolving |oan funds:
Commercial Charter Fisheries, Mriculture, and M crol oans.
She referred to page 2, which displayed the capitalization
anount s: Conmrer ci al Charter Fi sheri es, $9 mllion;
Mariculture, $2.5 mllion; and Mcroloans, $3 mllion. She
| ooked at the loan limts for each fund: Commrercial Charter
Fi sheries, $100,000; Mariculture, $100,000; and M crol oans,
$35,000 for a single individual and $70,000 for a two or
nore. She noted that the loan ternms, interest rates, and
floor/ceiling were al so displayed.

Comm ssioner Bell pointed out that many were interested in
pursuing revolving |oan avenues for econom c devel opnent.
She stated that there were discussions with |ocal financial
institutions that expressed support. She stressed that the
Charter Culture Fisheries and Mariculture funds had
inportant inplications for coastal and rural Al aska.

Comm ssioner Bell [|ooked at page 3: "Commercial Charter
Fi sheries Revolving Loan Fund." This fund woul d-
e Provide access to capital for Al askan- Owned
Charters.
* Repatriate permts to Al aska
* Increase econom c benefits fromthis sector.

Comm ssioner Bell pointed out the fund's current activity:
NOAA took 1,088 applications, issuing 90 percent permanent
and only 10 percent as interim (Al aska residents received
92 out of 111). She explained that for the first four
nont hs of 2011, average permt prices for Area 2C permts
were nearly $35,000 and Area 3A pernmts were nearly
$59, 000.

Comm ssioner Bell |ooked at page 4, "Mariculture Revolving
Loan Fund":

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 7 01/ 25/ 12 9:02 A M



e Mriculture industry has significant potential
for year-round job creation in rural and coasta
areas of the state.

* Relatively new industry and require 5-7 years to
see return on investnent.

 WId harvest exceeds cultivated harvest. Based on
current levels, wth greater investnent, farned

shellfish will exceed the market value of wld
caught shellfish (excluding crab) wthin 10-15
years.

* Industry could generate $20-$30 million in annua
product sal es.

Comm ssioner Bell discussed page 5, "Alaska M croloan
Revol vi ng Loan Fund":
e Inproves economc developnent to seed start-up
busi nesses.
* Provides access to wrking capital, inventory
expansi on, etc.
e Provides financing for expansion.
 Mbdel ed after SBA program
e Alaska one of few remaining states wthout a
m crol oan program

Co- Chair Hof frman wondered how the split was deternmi ned on
the capitalization of each of the prograns. Conm ssioner
Bell replied that the demand for Comercial Charter
Fi sheries was increased, and was supported in the House

She stated that there was an estimated of anticipated |oan
limts, nmarket demand, and history to deternmne the
capitalization.

Co- Chai r Stedman queried the initial capitalization
subm ssion. Conm ssioner Bell responded that the initial
proposed capitalizations were $5 nillion for Charter
Fisheries, $2.5 for Mariculture, and $3 mllion for
M cr ol oan.

Co-Chair Hoffman stressed that he supported comerci al
fishing. He added that his district was probably the
| argest fishing district in the state. He wondered if his
district's progr anms wer e t oo heal t hy to assi st.
Comm ssioner Bell replied that the vast majority of the
processed | oans were for conmercial fishing.

10: 13: 27 AM

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 8 01/ 25/ 12 9:02 A M



Co-Chair Hoffman noted that many of his constituents were
interested in marketing their product, and felt that there
was not enough enphasis on that aspect of assistance.
Conmi ssioner Bell replied there were too core areas of
econom ¢ devel opnent activity: financing and marketing. She
agreed to participate in discussions to inprove individual
regi onal marketing entities.

Co-Chair Hoffman stressed that individuals wanted to
process their own fish, and send the fish to market. He
wondered iif there was assistance in a revolving |oan
program that could assist them Comm ssioner Bell replied
that there was potential within the Mcroloan program or
t he Rural Devel opnent |nvestnent Fund (RDIF).

Senat or Thomas queried how the determ nation of interest
rates and whether there would be an annual report of the
program Conm ssioner Bell responded that the mcroloan
program would be available on a statewi de basis, and the
RDI F program was specific to comunity populations that
were 5,000 or less if not connected by road or rail to
Anchorage or Fairbanks and 2,000 or less if connected. She
stressed that there was growth in the utilization of the
RDIF in the year prior.

CATHY JEANS, FINANCE OPERATI ONS MANAGER, DEPARTMENT OF
COWERCE, COVMUNITY AND ECONOM C DEVELOPMENT, stated that
there were mandated reports that were supposed to be filed
by the end of January of each year for commercial fisheries
and fisheries enhancenent. She agreed to add the
Mariculture and Mcrol oan funds to the report.

10: 18: 37 AM

Senat or McGQuire requested data that determ ned the
princi pal anount. She stressed the |oans should devel op
revenue. She wondered if there was an anticipation of
profits comng back to the state. Comm ssioner Bell replied
that there was sonme anticipation that prices could be as
hi gh as $100,000, and also as many as 100 Al askans that
needed to purchase a permt. She stressed that there was
basis in determning the principal anmount. She agreed to
provi de further information.

Senator Egan would why the interest would be different on a
t hree-year area and Co-Chair Stedman al so queried who woul d

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 9 01/ 25/ 12 9:02 A M



aut horize the loans. Conm ssioner Bell stated that DCCED
had worked wth the Comerci al Finance Industry to
deternm ne the rates.

Co-Chair Stedman requested the default issues regarding
cross-correlation for the borrowers.

Co-Chair Stedman noted the four new fiscal notes from the
Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opnent.

10: 25: 38 AM

RODGER  PAI NTER, PRESI DENT, ALASKAN  SHELLFI SH GRONERS
ASSOCI ATIQON, testified in favor of HB 121. He pointed out
that there was a trenmendous demand for financing. He
stressed that the |loans were neant for operating capital
He felt that there were many applicants who would utilize
the $25 million capitalization.

Senator McCQuire queried the proper anount to capitalize the
fund. She wondered if M. Painter supported advocacy of the
comrittee to raise the $2.5 mllion principal in the
Mariculture Fund. M. Painter replied that he was going to
enbark on a training program to apprentice farners, and in
two years those people would be |ooking for financing. He
stressed that currently there were enough people who woul d
use up the entire fund.

RUSSELL DI CK, PRESIDENT AND CEO, HAA AANI, LLC, testified
in support of HB 121. He stressed that there were financial
chal | enges and noving inpedinents on econon c devel opnent
in rural comunities. He felt that HB 121 would encourage
econon ¢ expansion in rural comrunities.

10: 35:43 AM

PAUL FUHS, ALASKA SEA FARMS, spoke in support of HB 121.

Comm ssioner Bell thanked the commttee, and stated that
she would followup with the default rate questions.

Co-Chair Stedman requested a classical calculation, and
gueried how many | oans had been restructured and defined as
defaul t.

Senator MQuire requested information regarding the budget
for BSC fundi ng.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 10 01/ 25/ 12 9:02 A M



CSHB 121(RLS) was HEARD and HELD in conmittee for further
consi derati on.

Co-Chair Stedman cancelled the follow ng day's neeting.

#
ADJ OURNVENT

10:41: 01 AM

The neeting was adjourned at 10:41 AM

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 11 01/ 25/ 12 9:02 A M



